
Employee Benefits Consultant & Broker Services (Annual Contract) 

Number: RFP 21-38 

Addendum #2 

Closing Date: May 25, 2021 

 
The information contained in this document shall become an official part of the original document and shall be 

acknowledged as noted on the Proposal Certification Form (Form 2) of solicitation document in the space provided.  

Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may result in a status of non-responsive.  Firms are encouraged to review 

the contents of this document and to respond accordingly. 

 

Addendum No. 2 is being issued to provide answers to questions submitted.   

 

              

No. Question Answer 

1.  The RFP indicates permissible discussions on 

competing proposals, including pricing.  Please 

confirm, proposed pricing is not disclosed to 

competing offerors for the purpose of repricing. 

See Page 9, Section T “Public Information” 

It is the policy of the Board that at the conclusion of the selection 

process, the contents of all proposals will be placed in the public 

domain and be open to inspection by interested parties. Trade 

secrets or proprietary information that are recognized as such and 

are protected by law may be withheld, if clearly identified as such 

in the proposal. Failure to list all proprietary sections of the 

submitted proposal shall relieve the Board from any responsibility 

should such information be viewed by the public, a competitor, or 

be in any way accidentally released. 

 

2. The RFP indicates that commissions will remain  

firm for the contract duration, please confirm that 

it is the District’s intent that it is the commission 

percentage of premium that is anticipated to be 

maintained at the same rate for the duration of the 

contract term? 

Correct, it is the commission percentage of premium that is  

anticipated to be the same rate for the duration of the contract term. 

3. The RFP indicates that there is an intent that 

amounts remaining net of commission balance be 

used to reduce premium costs or purchase 

additional services, please confirm the intent of 

the District is that the Offeror will submit a fixed 

fee amount that would be reduced by 

commissions or subsidies from insurance 

carriers.  In addition, please advise how the 

District anticipates compensation in the event 

that commissions are not ample to cover the 

proposed fixed fee amount? 

The District will not consider any additional or out of pocket  

expenses not covered by the commission fees. 

4 The District has asked that the secure portal be 

available for customers and partners to conduct 

business, please advise who, outside of District 

employees, would be expected to have access to 

the secure portal?  Please confirm that the 

District will support Offeror in ensuring that any 

named entity outside of the District would 

execute necessary Business Associate 

Agreements and disclose use of accessible data 

in accordance with HIPAA. 

This is an oversite; The District and the Offeree should be the only 

entities needing access to the secure portal.  

 

5 The RFP requests that ability to provide premium 

statements to members on Leave without Pay, is 

the District’s expectation that the Offeror will 

also provide funds management and 

No, the District will provide funds management and reconciliation 

of such premiums.  



reconciliation of such premiums?   

6 Within the Leave without Pay services, specific 

to tracking responsibilities, is it the expectation 

of the District that the platform will manage 

automatic processing of member transactions, i.e. 

termination, based on defined timelines of 

processes? 

Yes 

7 Section 4.1 (a) indicates the need to recommend 

renewal options prior to May 1st while Section 

4.1 (h) indicates the need to recommend 

improvements by April 1st.  To confirm, 

recommendations and selections for the 

upcoming plan year, would be the responsibility 

of the awarded offer with the intent of the 

District that the awarded Offeror will have an 

extension on these deadlines for the initial 

period? 

It will be the responsibility of the awarded Offeree to conduct the  

bidding of products and coverage of all benefits and ancillary  

products for the District. Recommendations from the Offeree must  

be presented to the District by May 1st for review. The District will  

select products.  

8 What is the District’s delivery expectation of 

communication materials, i.e. benefit guides, is 

the District expecting printed materials or is there 

consideration for using only digital mediums like 

.pdf or web-based? 

The District is expecting multiple variations of communication  

materials. Currently we use annual benefit guides, post cards, hand- 

outs, posters for each building, and digital/web-based media. 

9 Section 4.2 (a) indicates an effective date of this 

contract of January 1, 2022 while Section 3.0 

indicates requirement to immediately assume 

responsibilities upon award.  Is it the intent of the 

District that the awarded Offeror would not be 

eligible for compensation until after January 1, 

2022? 

Section 3.0, page 15 - All contracts for benefits and ancillary 

products must be fully executed by August 30, 2021.  All 

benefit and ancillary services will be offered during open 

enrollment in October 2021 to be effective January 1, 2022. 

 

Section 5.0 Term of Contract - This solicitation will result in a  

contract that shall remain effective for a one (1) year period  

beginning with the full execution of the contract. 

10 Claim processing is indicated as a requirement of 

the broker/consultant, please advise what claim 

processing services are anticipated?  Is this 

strictly reporting of claim data from carriers and 

resolution of inquiries or is this anticipated to 

extend beyond those two scenarios? 

The selected offeree will act as a liaison between the District and  

benefit plan providers, coordinating reports between the two and  

resolving discrepancies. 

11 Please advise the number of open enrollment 

meetings anticipated. 

At minimum 3 but no more than 5. This is flexible. 

12 Is Shaw Hankins included in the RFP process? This RFP is open to all firms. 

13 Are commissions currently built into the 

products? 

Yes 

14 Is your current broker providing the same 

services as listed in the Scope of Services of this 

RFP? 

Yes, these services are being provided by the current broker. 

15 Are there key drivers to this RFP other than what 

you have outlined, such as significant benefit 

changes or major benefit initiatives? 

No, there are not any significant benefit changes or major  

initiatives driving this RFP. 

16 Are any retirees included in these services? If so, 

please provide the number, and explain how the 

premiums are collected. 

Retirees have the option to enroll in cobra dental, vision, and FSA’s. 

There’re an estimated 60 enrollees in a given month. Enrollment  

and premiums are handled through TASC, a benefit provider. 

17 Are you currently using any type of web-based 

or online enrollment system?  If so, what system 

is currently in place and how is the cost covered? 

Yes, the current broker’s online enrollment system is currently  

being used. The District does not incur a cost for this service. 

18 Is Administrative Support included for Retirees, 

COBRA, FSA, etc. 

Define the type of administrative support being reference. 



19 Is ACA reporting included? No 

20 Please clarify the correct method for submitting 

proposals in response to this RFP.  Several pages 

mention electronic submission (cover letter and 

others) and other references are to printed copies 

(page 22 and others). 

Follow instructions on Page 4, Section F in the solicitation:  

Delivery and Submission of Proposals. 

21 If electronic/email submittal is required, please 

give your preference for documents to be 

combined into one pdf or whether multiple pdfs 

are acceptable.  (Sometimes the size of attached 

documents causes email to be blocked by email 

security protocols.) 

Proposals may be submitted in multiple PDF’s or zip files. 

22 Please confirm whether form signatures must be 

original (wet signatures) or if electronic 

signatures would be accepted instead. 

Electronic signature will be accepted as long as it is secure. 

23 Please clarify the submission instructions. Email 

submission is requested in several locations, 

however, there is also a reference to a USB/CD 

submission and Originals/Copies. This seems to 

conflict with the requested email submission 

method. Are both methods of submission 

required, or can we solely submit via email? If 

paper copies and a USB/CD are required, is the 

due date the same as the email submission? 

Follow instructions on Page 4, Section F in the solicitation:  

Delivery and Submission of Proposals. 

24 Please confirm the number of locations and 

enrollment meetings per location for which 

support is requested. 

This is flexible and changes from year to year, however we host 3-5 

open enrollment fairs. 

25 Please confirm the system from which employee 

indicative and employment status data will be 

supplied for the purposes of determining benefits 

eligibility. 

The District is currently using HR/Payroll System AHRS release  

2.X from CGI-AMS. We are in the process of implementing Tyler 

Munis. 

26 What is the current premium by product line? 

This information will be critical to determine the 

details of our response. 

See attachment Premium Sheet 

27 What is the annual commission paid by product 

line? 

See attachment Schedule A Consultant/Broker Fee 

28 Do the commissions support any other initiatives 

beyond the enrollment of the VB programs? 

No 

29 Are all benefit programs fully insured? No, the dental plan is self-funded 

30 Please provide plan details for all lines of 

coverage, including current rates, your 

experience, and any additional pertinent 

information. 

See attachment for current rates, remaining details will be released  

upon award of contract. 

 

31 Where does the enrollment take place for the 

“core” benefits (medical insurance, as an 

example)? 

Employees have 31 days from the date of hire to enroll  

through the online enrollment platforms or by calling the  

customer service  

centers to complete enrollment via telephone.  

32 Is there any call center support today? If so, can 

you share call data? 

Yes, call center support is available to employees. No, we’re unable  

to share the data.  

33 Does the open enrollment for these products 

align with open enrollment with the medical 

plan? 

Yes, both enrollment periods are aligned.  

34 What type of communications are used to engage 

employees in the programs? 

The current broker has created a Benefits Resource website with 

videos for each plan offered, post cards are mailed, posters are 

generated and posted through the buildings. Mass emails are used  

and prior to Covid benefit fairs were held throughout the District. 



35 How much control do we have with the 

communication/enrollment conditions? 

The District and the Broker work closely together with  

Communication design and dissemination.  

36 Please confirm the payroll system and any 

integration that is happening today for these 

benefits. 

Currently our system is AHRS, however, the District is in the  

process of integrating Tyler Munis.  

37 What is the enrollment process outside of open 

enrollment (new hires, life event changes)? 

Employees have the option to enroll and/or make changes to  

benefit coverage through the online portal or by calling the broker’s  

customer service center to complete enrollment via telephone. 

38 Are you open to an alternative to the request for 

onsite representatives in July/October, utilizing 

best practices? This would also serve as a 

safeguard during the ongoing COVID-19 

pandemic. 

Yes, due to COVID we are open to an alternative to this request.  

However, the expectation is once COVID restrictions have cleared 

in-person interactions and alternative representation methods will  

be used. 

39 The RFP noted Attachment D included (Sample 

Contract); however, no attachment has been 

located with the RFP materials provided. Please 

supply the referenced attachment and confirm if 

exceptions can be submitted with the RFP. 

The Sample Contract is posted to the website www.sccpss.com  

in the Supporting Docs folder.  

40 Are you seeking COBRA administration services 

for Dental, Vision, and Health Care FSA? 

COBRA management services should be included. It’s currently  

managed by one of the plan providers.  

41 Is there a specific budget for this project? No 

42 What are you currently paying NFP on an annual 

basis? What would you improve about current 

broker services? 

SCCPSS does not pay broker service fees except for the  

dental commission fee. Payments to the broker are received 

through commissions from the plans. 

43 Has Savannah-Chatham seen other demos of 

benefits administration systems in the past 3 

years? If yes, please identify the company names. 

No 

44 What prompted you to release this RFP? It is the Board’s decision to solicit for these services. 

45 Beyond what’s listed in the RFP, what other 

evaluation criteria will you use to assist in 

making a decision to change? 

The information listed in the RFP will be the evaluating criteria.  

46 Are you using any third parties (consultants, 

carriers, brokers, etc.) to assist with your 

decision to change? If yes, can you please 

identify them? 

NFP Corporate Services (formerly ShawHankins)  

 

47 You specify that along with broker services, new 

technology is to be provided at no charge. If you 

decide to change brokers, would you consider 

keeping your current benefits administration 

technology provider? If no, why not? 

Currently, benefits technology is coordinated through the employer  

and the current broker. SCCPSS technology department works  

closely with the current broker to ensure data files are transferred. 

The broker’s platform is used for new employee enrollment,  

qualifying life changes, and open enrollment. 

48 Are you open to offering additional voluntary 

benefit lines of coverage that are not offered 

today? 

Yes, we are open to reviewing benefit coverages not currently  

offered  

49 Who is the current FSA/HSA provider? What is 

the average account size by member? 

TASC is the current provider and the average monthly total  

member participants is 1054. 

50 What are the current participation counts for the 

following plans? 

a. Healthcare FSA Plan 

b. Dependent Care FSA Plan 

a. Healthcare FSA Plan- 970 

b. Dependent Care FSA Plan- 84 

51 Some of the High Deductible Health Plan 

(HDHP) benefit booklets reference Health 

Savings Account (HSA)-eligible Plans. 

Considering the County could potentially change 

carriers in the coming years, would you be open 

to considering a plan-agnostic approach? Would 

you consider allowing us to include a proposal of 

Our health insurance plans are managed through the state of 

Georgia’s Department of Community Health/State Health Benefit Plan. 

Any changes to our plans will be managed by the State. Currently 

we do not offer an HSA and are not seeking this plan in our 

proposal at this time.  

http://www.sccpss.com/


our HSA administration capabilities? If so: what 

are the current participation counts in the 

following plans? 

a. Health Savings Account (HSA) Plan 

52 Are there any reimbursement programs the 

County may be reimbursing manually (perhaps 

through payroll) you’d consider automating with 

our proposal? If so, what are the current: 

a. Plan Names / Types (fitness, tuition, 

adoption, etc.) 

b. Current participation counts and 

estimated claim activity by month 

No, the District does not have a reimbursement program. 

53 Please verify your current total population. How 

many of those employees are eligible for 

coverage? 

We have 5570 employees, 5350 are benefit eligible.  

54 Are there employees that are ineligible for 

benefits? If so, how many? 

Employees must be in a permanent FTE of .5 or higher position to be 

benefit eligible. There are some positions lower than .5 

55 What is your HR System of record? What is your 

payroll system? 

Our system is currently AHRS; however, we are in the  

process of implementing Tyler Munis for both 

56 How many employees, on average, are enrolled 

in COBRA in a given month? 

About 60 

57 How many employees are on unpaid LOA in a 

given month? 

In a given month we may have over 150 employees on a leave of 

absence and of that 100 are leave without pay.  

58 Who is your ACA vendor? Would you be open 

to moving that service to the new provider? 

a. How many FEINs do you have? 

b. How many 1095s were sent in 2020? 

We do not have an ACA vendor and we’re not seeking these 

services currently.  

 

We have 1 FEIN 

about 6,050 1095’s was sent  

 

59 On the first page of RFP 21-38 Employee 

Benefits Consultant & Broker Services, it states 

that because of Covid, the RFP response should 

be emailed. I noticed on page 22, it states that, 

“Each technical proposal must be submitted in 

one original and five copies and one CD_ROM 

or flash drive.” 

Can you please confirm whether the RFP 

response is to be emailed or mailed? 

Follow instructions on Page 4, Section F in the solicitation:  

Delivery and Submission of Proposals. 

 

***ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED*** 

 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 


